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WHO WE ARE?                 

THE ORGANISATION FOR ECONOMIC AND 

DEVELOPMENT (OECD) WAS INVITED BY 

MENA COUNTRIES, ALONGSIDE ITS KEY 

PARTNERS TO PROVIDE EXPERTISE ON 

IMPLEMENTING INVESTMENT POLICY 

REFORM. OECD EXPERTISE LIES IN 

DESIGNING AND HELPING TO IMPLEMENT 

COMPREHENSIVE INVESTMENT REFORM 

STRATEGIES, DRAWING ON ITS SUCCESSES 

WITH OTHER REGIONAL AND COUNTRY-

SPECIFIC-PROGRAMMES.  
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TO SUBSCRIBE TO THE MENA-OECD 

INVESTMENT PROGRAMME NEWSLETTER 

PLEASE SEND AN EMAIL TO 

MENA.INVESTMENT@OECD.ORG 
FURTHER INFORMATION ABOUT THE 

WORK OF THE MENA-OECD 

INVESTMENT PROGRAMME CAN BE 

FOUND AT WWW.OECD.ORG/MENA 

CONTACT US:  
2, RUE ANDRÉ PASCAL F-75775 PARIS 

CEDEX 16 FRANCE 
MENA.INVESTMENT@OECD.ORG 

 

 
THIS EDITION OF THE MENA-OECD INVESTMENT PROGRAMME NEWSLETTER 

HIGHLIGHTS OUR RECENT AND ONGOING WORK ADDRESSING THE NEW CHALLENGES OF THE COUNTRIES IN THE MIDDLE 

EAST AND NORTH AFRICA REGION. IT INCLUDES ARTICLES REPORTING ON THE NEXT MENA-OECD INVESTMENT 

MINISTERIAL MEETING, THE OPENING OF THE MENA INVESTMENT CENTER IN BAHRAIN, THE COUNTRY FOCUS ON 

LEBANON, AND HIGHLIGHTS FROM RECENT MEETINGS OF THE PROGRAMME’S STEERING GROUP  AND WORKING 

GROUPS. 
 

 

WITH PRIVATISATION PEAKING IN 2005/6/7 IN THE REGION AND ABUNDANT LIQUIDITY STIMULATING INTRA-REGIONAL 

INVESTMENT FLOWS, THE MENA REGION SUCCEEDED IN 

ATTRACTING MORE AND MORE FDI IN THE LAST 5 YEARS. 

IN ORDER TO BE SUSTAINED, THIS TREND NEEDS TO BE 

SUPPORTED BY CONTINUOUS EFFORTS OF POLICY MAKERS 

TO IMPROVE THE INVESTMENT CLIMATE AND THE GENERAL 

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT. THE MENA-OECD 

INVESTMENT PROGRAMME’S 2
ND

 MINISTERIAL MEETING, 

27-28 NOVEMBER IN CAIRO, EGYPT, PROVIDES AN 

OPPORTUNITY TO ASSESS THE PROGRESS MADE IN 

INVESTMENT POLICY REFORMS SINCE MINISTERS MET IN 

JORDAN IN FEBRUARY 2006 FOR THE FIRST TIME. 

 
SOURCE: UNCTAD (2007), ECONOMIST INTELLIGENCE UNIT 

WHAT’S NEW?  

SECOND MINISTERIAL MEETING, CAIRO EGYPT, 27-28 NOVEMBER 2007  

“MAKING REFORMS SUCCEED: MOVING FORWARD WITH THE INVESTMENT POLICY AGENDA” 
THE SECOND MENA-OECD INVESTMENT MINISTERIAL MEETING TITLED MAKING REFORMS SUCCEED: MOVING FORWARD WITH 

THE INVESTMENT POLICY AGENDA WILL BE HELD ON 28 NOVEMBER 2007 IN CAIRO, EGYPT. THIS REGIONAL EVENT WILL BE HELD 

UNDER THE AUSPICES OF THE PRIME MINISTER OF EGYPT, H.E. DR. AHMED NAZIF AND WILL BE CHAIRED BY H.E. DR. MAHMOUD 

MOHIELDIN, MINISTER OF INVESTMENT OF EGYPT. […] (CONTINUES ON PAGE 2)  

COUNTRY FOCUS: LEBANON IN THE MENA-OECD INVESTMENT PROGRAMME  
OECD’S CO-OPERATION WITH THE LEBANESE GOVERNMENT, PRIVATE SECTOR AND CIVIL SOCIETY HAS INTENSIFIED THIS YEAR 

FOCUSING ON THE TRANSPARENCY IN THE RECONSTRUCTION PROCESS AS WELL AS THE ONGOING INVESTMENT CLIMATE REFORMS. 

[…] (CONTINUES ON PAGE 3)  

OPENING MENA INVESTMENT CENTER BAHRAIN  
THE MENA INVESTMENT CENTRE HAS OPENED IN BAHRAIN. THE CENTER HAS STARTED TO IMPLEMENT AN AMBITIOUS WORK 

PROGRAMME AND WILL SUPPORT THE MENA-OECD INVESTMENT PROGRAMME IN ONGOING ACTIVITIES. THE CENTER PLACES 

BAHRAIN IN AN IMPORTANT ROLE TO DEVELOP THE ECONOMIC INVESTMENT AND RESEARCH PROGRAMME WITH THE OECD IN THE 

REGION [...] (CONTINUES ON PAGE 2  ) 
EGYPT: SIGNATURE OF THE OECD’S INVESTMENT DECLARATION 

EGYPT HAS MADE IMPRESSIVE PROGRESS IN REFORMING ITS INVESTMENT POLICIES IN RECENT YEARS BUT SIGNIFICANT BARRIERS TO 

BOTH FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC BUSINESS REMAIN. EASING THESE RESTRICTIONS WOULD ATTRACT MORE INVESTMENT, INCREASE 

COMPETITION AND BENEFIT THE ECONOMY AS WHOLE, ACCORDING TO A NEW OECD REPORT […] (CONTINUES ON PAGE 4)  
COMMUNICATION WORKSHOP  

GOVERNMENTS ARE INCREASINGLY REALISING THAT IMPLEMENTING BUSINESS AND INVESTMENT CLIMATE REFORMS IS AS 

IMPORTANT AS COMMUNICATING THEM TO THE KEY STAKEHOLDERS. IN THE ABSENCE OF STAKEHOLDER SUPPORT, BUSINESS 

CLIMATE AND INVESTMENT REFORMS MAY BE CONTESTED EVEN DERAILED, AND FUTURE REFORM EFFORTS MAY BE THEREFORE 

NEGATIVELY AFFECTED […] (CONTINUES ON PAGE 4  )  

MENA TAX EXPERTS DISCUSSIONS ON WAYS TO IMPROVE THE FISCAL CLIMATE FOR INVESTMENT 
HOSTED BY THE EGYPTIAN MINISTRY OF FINANCE, THE THIRD MEETING OF WORKING GROUP 3 (TAX POLICY FOR INVESTMENT) OF 

THE MENA-OECD INVESTMENT PROGRAMME WAS HELD IN CAIRO ON 19-20 JUNE 2007. THE WG3 MEETING ALSO OFFICIALLY 

LAUNCHED A REGIONAL TAX POLICY TRAINING PROGRAMME TO PROVIDE TRAINING THROUGH A SERIES OF SEMINARS AND 

WORKSHOPS […] (CONTINUES PAGE 5)  

MOROCCO AND UAE HOLD NIRA WORKSHOPS TO SHOWCAST PROGRESS IN INVESTMENT POLICY 

REFORMS NATIONAL INVESTMENT REFORM WORKSHOPS WERE CONDUCTED IN MOROCCO AND THE UAE. (SEE PAGE 6 )   
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UPCOMING EVENTS 

SEPTEMBER 2007 

4-5, JORDAN, MEETING OF THE 

WORKING GROUP 1  

6, WORKSHOP ON PPPS WITH THE 

EXECUTIVE PRIVATISATION 

COMMISSION OF JORDAN, AMMAN 

JORDAN 

17-21, WORKSHOP ON TAX 

AUDITING OF SMALL AND MEDIUM 

SIZED ENTERPRISES, CAIRO EGYPT 

NOVEMBER 2007 

27-28, MINISTERIAL MEETING & 

BUSINESS DAY, CAIRO EGYPT 

 

PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

11-JULY-2007 PARIS, EGYPT IS TO 

BECOME THE FIRST ARAB COUNTRY TO 

SIGN THE OECD DECLARATION ON 

INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENT 

JULY 4-5
TH

2007 LONDON, 

ROUNDTABLE ON INSTITUTIONAL 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR FINANCIAL 

SECTOR SUPERVISION IN THE MENA 

REGION 

25-26-JUNE-2007 BAHRAIN, 

WORKING GROUP 2 & SEMINAR ON 

COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES FOR 

INVESTMENT REFORMS. 

19-20-JUNE-2007 CAIRO EGYPT, 

WORKING GROUP 3 « TAX POLICY 

FOR INVESTMENTέ  

21 MAY 2007 CAIRO EGYPT, 

MEETING ON DEVELOPING SOUND 

INSOLVENCY AND CREDITOR RIGHT 

SYSTEMS IN THE MENA  

19-APR-2007 LEBANON NATIONAL 

INVESTMENT REFORM WORKSHOP  

21-DEC-2006 UNITED ARAB 

EMIRATES, NATIONAL INVESTMENT 

REFORM WORKSHOP  

12-DEC-2006 CAIRO EGYPT, MENA-
OECD EXPERT GROUP ON 

INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENT 

AGREEMENTS 

08-NOV-2006 ISTANBUL, MENA 

WORKSHOP ON PUBLIC-PRIVATE 

PARTNERSHIPS FOR INFRASTRUCTURE 

FINANCING 

 

 

 

SECOND MINISTERIAL MEETING, CAIRO EGYPT 

27-28 NOVEMBER 2007. 

“MAKING REFORMS SUCCEED:  
MOVING FORWARD WITH THE INVESTMENT POLICY AGENDA” 

 

The Ministerial Meeting will gather high level delegations from the countries participating in 
the Programme to identify elements crucial to fostering investment climate and adopt new 
tools for implementation of investment policy reform Ministers will take stock of achievements 
in investment climate reforms and regional co-operation, discuss remaining challenges and 
provide orientations for the way forward. The meeting will equally attract private sector 
representatives from all over the Middle East and North Africa (MENA) region, who will be 
engaging in targeted discussions on topics which the Programme has been working on 
throughout 2006, including investment, corporate governance, taxation environment, and 
financial sector development, among others. 

Government representatives and private sector participants will be invited to participate in the 
Business Forum preceding the Ministerial Meeting on the 27th November, during which a 
matchmaking event for companies from all over the region and OECD countries will be 
organised in cooperation with the United National Industrial Development Organisation 
(UNIDO). A part of the Business Forum will be dedicated to the topic of strengthening the role 
of women business in the MENA region. The Women Business Leaders Forum, organised in 
cooperation with the Egyptian Businesswomen Association, will aim to gather representatives 
of women's business associations from across the region and will present a Declaration on 
Women's Participation in MENA Economies. 

 

LINK TO DRAFT AGENDA (ENGLISH / FRANÇAIS) 
  

LINK TO MINISTERIAL INFORMATION SHEET  

 
SPONSORSHIP AND PARTNERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES ARE AVAILABLE FOR THIS EVENT.  

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT US AT: MENA.INVESTMENT@OECD.ORG  
 

LAST MINISTERIAL MEETING: DEAD SEA, JORDAN, 13-14 FEBRUARY 2006 
 INVESTMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT: MAKING REFORMS WORK  

 
With economic development and job creation in many countries of the Middle East and North Africa likely 
to hinge on increased domestic, regional and foreign investment, Ministers from MENA countries in 
charge of investment policy reform met with their OECD counterparts in Jordan on 13-14 February to 
discuss ways to create a more attractive environment for private enterprise. 
The two-day MENA Investment Ministerial Meeting reviewed recent policy reforms in the region and set 
new targets for further action. Ministers were invited to adopt a Declaration on common principles and 
good practice for attracting investment to MENA countries. 

 

LINK TO MINISTERIAL DECLARATION AND RELATED DOCUMENTS JORDAN 2006  

OPENING MENA CENTER FOR INVESTMENT, MANAMA  
ά/ǊŜŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀ ŎŜƴǘǊŜ ƻŦ ŜȄŎŜƭƭŜƴŎŜ ǇǊƻǾƛŘƛƴƎ ŀ ǇƭŀǘŦƻǊƳ ŦƻǊ ŎŀǇŀŎƛǘȅ 

building on investment and 
innovation policies leading to 

economic growth and job 
cǊŜŀǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ a9b! ǊŜƎƛƻƴΦέ 

The announcement was made by CEO of The Economic 
Development Board of Bahrain (EDB) Shaikh 
Mohammed bin Isa Al Khalifa on the sidelines of a 

two-day MENA-OECD Investment Programme workshop titled: 'Designing effective strategies 
for investment promotion and reform communication'. The meeting was chaired by the Head of 
the MENA-OECD Investment Programme, Dr. Rainer Geiger and advisor for the state 
Secretariat for Economic Affairs in Switzerland Mr. Paul Obrist.  

http://www.oecd.org/document/33/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_38467617_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/33/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_38467617_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/33/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_38467617_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/4/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_37735492_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/4/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_37735492_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/4/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_37735492_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/4/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_37735492_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/19/0,3343,en_34645207_34645466_37419731_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/19/0,3343,en_34645207_34645466_37419731_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/19/0,3343,en_34645207_34645466_37419731_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/19/0,3343,en_34645207_34645466_37419731_1_1_1_1,00.html
file:\\main.oecd.org\sdataDAF\Data\MIDDLEEAST\Ministerials%202007\Agenda\Draft%20Ministerial%20Agenda_0609.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/8/62/38937775.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/8/61/38937790.pdf
mailto:mena.investment@oecd.org
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/14/54/36232905.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/30/35/37520012.pdf
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RECENT PUBLICATIONS 

INVESTMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT, 

INVESTMENT POLICY CO-OPERATION 

WITH NON-OECD ECONOMIES. 

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 (OECD).  

INVESTMENT CLIMATE REFORM FOR 

GROWTH AND EMPLOYMENT. MENA-

OECD INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 

(OECD). 

NATIONAL INVESTMENT REFORM 

AGENDAS: EGYPT, JORDAN, 

MOROCCO, OMAN, UNITED ARAB 

EMIRATES 

MENA POLICY BRIEFS, ISSUES 1-3 ON 

VENTURE CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT IN 

THE MENA COUNTRIES, INVESTMENT 

LAWS AND INTERNATIONAL 

INVESTMENT AGREEMENTS, 2006-

2007 

MENA PROGRAMME IN 

THE MEDIA 

WORKING GROUP 2 MEETING 25-26 

JUNE 2007, BAHRAIN       

-GCC TAX REGIME ON THE WAY 

BAHRAIN TRIBUNE 10 JUL 07 

-MENA INVESTMENT CENTRE OPENS,  

TRADE ARABIA 26 JUN 07 

-OECD OPENS MIDEAST AND NORTH 

AFRICA INVESTMENT CENTRE IN 

BAHRAIN- 
BAHRAIN NEWS AGENCY,  25 JUNE 

2007  

TAX COOPERATION 

-OECD TO BOOST TAX 

COOPERATION WITH GULF REGION 
LAWANDTAX-NEWS.COM, CYPRUS 

20 APRIL 2007 

-UAE, OECD INK MOU TO BOOST 

TAX COOPERATION 
PEOPLE'S DAILY, CHINA, 06 

APR.07 

SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES IN 

THE SPOTLIGHT 
GULF DAILY NEWS, MONDAY 9 APRIL 

2007 

 

 

 
The Advisory Board, co-chaired by Economic Development Board of Bahrain and the OECD, will 
bring together international and regional organisations supporting the MENA-OECD 
Investment Programme including: relevant intergovernmental organisations (World Bank 
Group, UNIDO, UNCTAD), regional organisations (Islamic Development Bank, GCC), the private 
sector organizations (G8 Investment Task Force, Arab Business Council, Business and Industry 
Advisory Committee to the OECD) and in addition representatives of the academia and civil 
society. 
In this context, the MENA Center for Investment will serve as a regional focal point for the 
MENA-OECD Investment Program by:  

¶ providing local logistics and administrative support for the Program activities taking place 
in Bahrain and other MENA countries;  

¶ acting as a communications hub in the region in relation to MENA partners and regional 
broadcast/written  media;  

¶ providing research support for the Investment Program by collecting, updating information, 
data and analysis about MENA countries, maintaining easy access to regional information, 
database and indicators for program partners and creating an on-line library;  

¶ providing a capacity building venue and facilities for workshops, training, briefing sessions 
in the MENA region;  

¶ and developing research capacity and network on various aspects of MENA economies that 
can be fed into the Program.  
 

LEBANON IN THE  MENA-OECD  INVESTMENT PROGRAMME  
IMPROVING TRANSPARENCY IN RECONSTRUCTION 
& THE NATIONAL INVESTMENT REFORM AGENDA 

Since the inception of the MENA-OECD Investment Programme, Lebanon has been actively 
engaged in its activities. The Lebanese government in cooperation with the OECD Secretariat 
has elaborated a National Investment Reform Agenda with concrete reform targets already 
during the first year of the Programme, featuring a presentation on the progress of 
implementation during the first Ministerial Meeting held in February 2006 in Jordan.  
The cooperation with the Lebanese Government, the private sector and civil society, has 
continued in 2007 focusing more on the needs of the country in the aftermath of the war in 
July 2006. The activities of the OECD aimed in particular at offering assistance in increasing 

transparency of procurement procedures in the critical 
stage of reconstruction, thus addressing problems 
related to the ability of public institutions to safeguard 
the funds designated for projects. An expert meeting on 
Transparency in Reconstruction held on 20 February in 
Beirut, was organized jointly with the Lebanese 
Transparency Association (LTA). An in-depth discussion 
on aid delivery and procurement frameworks concluded 
with a series of recommendations and follow-up actions 
to improve transparency in immediate recovery efforts 
and longer term procurement reforms in Lebanon.  

The National Investment Reform Agenda (NIRA) workshop followed in April, jointly organized 
by the MINISTRY OF FINANCE OF LEBANON AND THE MENA-OECD INVESTMENT PROGRAMME, focusing 
on the ongoing Lebanese investment climate reforms and on the review of the targets 
achieved to date in the areas prioritized by the Lebanese government. The meeting was hosted 
by the Prime Minister's office at Government Headquarters (Grand Serail) and opened by the 
Ministers of Finance and Economy and Trade, H.E. Jihad Azour and H.E. Sami Haddad, who 
presented the key elements of Lebanon reform plan.  A number of concrete recommendations 
were agreed and presented by the Ministry of Finance and the MENA-OECD Investment 
Programme. These recommendations reflect the view of local and international experts, as 
well as representatives from Lebanese Government, private sector and civil society 
participating at the meeting. Concrete projects have been discussed and agreed by the 
Lebanese government in the areas of: a) Regulatory framework - Privatisation and 
Competition reforms; b) Transparency, integrity and public procurement; c) Tax Incentives; 
d) Enterprise Financing; e) Political Economy of reform – a mapping for reform 
implementation.  
 

http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/4/28/38148849.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/4/29/38148879.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/5/6/38148907.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/5/7/38148924.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/5/7/38148924.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/26/54/37256468.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/26/54/37256468.pdf
http://www.bahraintribune.com/ArticleDetail.asp?CategoryId=5&ArticleId=159091
http://www.tradearabia.com/news/newsdetails.asp?Sn=CM&artid=126117
http://english.bna.bh/?ID=59879
http://english.bna.bh/?ID=59879
http://english.bna.bh/?ID=59879
http://www.tax-news.com/asp/story/OECD_To_Boost_Tax_Cooperation_With_Gulf_Region_xxxx27023.html
http://www.tax-news.com/asp/story/OECD_To_Boost_Tax_Cooperation_With_Gulf_Region_xxxx27023.html
http://english.people.com.cn/200704/06/eng20070406_364206.html
http://english.people.com.cn/200704/06/eng20070406_364206.html
http://www.gulf-daily-news.com/story.asp?Article=178430&Sn=BUSI&IssueID=30020
http://www.gulf-daily-news.com/story.asp?Article=178430&Sn=BUSI&IssueID=30020
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KEY MATERIAL  

NATIONAL INVESTMENT REFORM 

AGENDAS: EGYPT, JORDAN, 

MOROCCO, LEBANON, OMAN,  
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES 
 

AN OVERVIEW OF THE ACHIEVEMENTS 

AND OBJECTIVES OF THE MENA-OECD 

INVESTMENT PROGRAMME, 

INVESTMENT CLIMATE REFORM FOR 

GROWTH AND EMPLOYMENT / ϰыЊ  

ϴϝзгЮϜ рϼϝгϫϧЂшϜ ϣугзϧЯЮ м 
ϢϸϝтϾ ЈϽТ ЭгЛЮϜ, OCTOBER 2006 

OECD INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEWS: 

EGYPT (JULY 2007) 

VENTURE CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT IN 

THE MENA COUNTRIES - TAKING 

ADVANTAGE OF THE CURRENT 

OPPORTUNITY, APRIL 2006 

MINISTERIAL DECLARATION AND 

RELATED DOCUMENTS / DÉCLARATION 

MINISTÉRIELLE ET DOCUMENTS 

CONNEXES / ARABIC VERSION,  

AGREED AT THE MINISTERIAL MEETING 

ON 13-14 FEBRUARY 2006, THE 

MINISTERIAL DECLARATION AND 

BUSINESS STATEMENT ARE JOINTLY 

INTENDED TO SERVE AS A FOUNDATION 

FOR ONGOING PROJECTS OF THE 

PROGRAMME, GUIDING ITS ACTIVITIES 

THROUGHOUT 2006 AND 2007. 

 

DOCUMENTATION 

& LINKS BY THEME 

TRANSPARENT AND OPEN INVESTMENT 

POLICIES (WORKING GROUP 1)   

ENCOURAGING INVESTMENT 

PROMOTION AGENCIES AND BUSINESS 

ASSOCIATIONS TO ACT AS A DRIVING 

FORCE FOR ECONOMIC REFORM 

(WORKING GROUP 2)   

PROVIDING A TAX FRAMEWORK FOR 

INVESTMENT AND ACCESSING 

INCENTIVES (WORKING GROUP 3)   

PROMOTING POLICIES FOR FINANCIAL 

SECTOR AND ENTERPRISE 

DEVELOPMENT IN SUPPORT OF 

ECONOMIC/ INVESTMENT 

DIVERSIFICATION(WORKING GROUP 4)  

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
(WORKING GROUP 5)  

 

 

 EGYPT:  THE INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW OF 2007   SIGNED THE 

OECD’S INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENT DECLARATION  

 

Egypt is to become the first Arab and first African 
country to sign the OECD Declaration on International 
Investment and Multinational Enterprises. This marks 
a new stage in Egypt's drive to attract more foreign 
direct investment (FDI). A series of policy reforms 
have helped to underpin a fifteen-fold increase in 
Egypt’s FDI between 2001 and 2006. FDI reached a 
record USD 9 billion in the first three quarters of its 
2007 fiscal year. This compares with USD 6.1 billion 
for the whole of 2006.  

A signing ceremony at OECD headquarters on Wednesday 11 July 2007 was followed by a news 
conference with Egypt's Minister of Investment, Dr. Mahmoud Mohieldin, and OECD Secretary-
General Angel Gurría. The news conference also presented the findings of a newly published 
OECD Investment Policy Review of Egypt. 

The Investment Policy Review of Egypt 2007 highlights that foreign direct investment inflows 
increased twelve- fold between 2001 and 2006. They reached 9 billion in the first three 
quarters of its 2007 fiscal year, up from just over USD 0.5 billion in 2001. This compares with 
USD 6.1 billion for the whole of 20006. The ambitious reform programme started in 2004 has 
helped spread the benefits of foreign direct investment. In 2004, two-thirds of all FDI was in 
the oil and gas industry but by 2006 that same share flowed into the manufacturing and 
services sectors, with oil accounting for just a third. Barriers to entry have been eased for both 
domestic and foreign investors, customs procedures streamlined and a dedicated ministry set 
up in 2004 to promote and manage investment. The tax system in particular has been 
streamlined, with a reduction in the corporate income tax rate from between 32% and 40% to 
a uniform 20% and the elimination of approximately 3000 different types of exemptions. 
Foreign investment in manufacturing has been fully liberalised, with the exception of defense-
related industries. Foreign equity participation in financial services and privately-owned 
telecommunications services is permitted up to 100%. Registering property has become much 
quicker and cheaper, with costs capped and the setting-up of a “one-stop-shop” that has cut 
the average time from 193 days to just one week. But foreign investment is restricted in 
several sectors, notably construction, electricity, and transport.  

LINK TO THE OECD DECLARATION ON INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENT AND MULTINATIONAL ENTERPRISES 

 

COMMUNICATION WORKSHOP  

[…] since the implementation of so-called ‘big picture’ reforms in 1980-1990s in Asia, Latin 
America, Eastern Europe and the Middle East, policy analysts and academics have been 
debating how to optimally design reforms in terms of their substance and sequencing. This 
debate has been complicated by the fact that reforms necessary in emerging market regions 
today are for most part no longer structural macroeconomic measures, but more complex and 
longer term measures such as privatisation and labour market reform. The implementation of 
such ‘second stage’ reforms often implies the execution of detailed programmes, and has in 
some instances encountered significant opposition from the affected constituencies who have 
perceive their interests negatively affected.  

Improving the acceptance of business climate and investment reforms in MENA countries is 
emerging at the forefront of the agenda of policymakers in the region. The MENA-OECD 
Investment Programme has thus initiated an exercise aiming to explore how communication of 
economic – and more specifically investment climate reforms – can help governments in the 
region to maintain the reform momentum, build coalitions for reform and engage in a quality 
public-private dialogue on these important issues. To this end, the MENA-OECD Investment  

http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/4/28/38148849.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/4/29/38148879.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/5/6/38148907.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/5/7/38148924.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/43/37/37595707.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/43/37/37595707.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/58/13/38271602.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/58/13/38271602.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/58/13/38271602.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/26/54/37256468.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/26/54/37256468.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/26/54/37256468.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/26/54/37256468.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/30/35/37520012.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/30/35/37520012.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/30/35/37520012.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/30/35/37520012.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/30/35/37520012.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/30/40/37520227.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/document/2/0,3343,en_34645207_34645702_37300098_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/2/0,3343,en_34645207_34645702_37300098_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/24/0,3343,en_34645207_34749074_37302552_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/24/0,3343,en_34645207_34749074_37302552_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/24/0,3343,en_34645207_34749074_37302552_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/24/0,3343,en_34645207_34749074_37302552_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/58/0,3343,en_34645207_34645764_37303034_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/58/0,3343,en_34645207_34645764_37303034_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/58/0,3343,en_34645207_34645764_37303034_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/33/0,3343,en_34645207_34645802_37303137_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/33/0,3343,en_34645207_34645802_37303137_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/33/0,3343,en_34645207_34645802_37303137_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/33/0,3343,en_34645207_34645802_37303137_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/33/0,3343,en_34645207_34645802_37303137_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/12/0,3343,en_34645207_34645863_37303500_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/daf/investment/instruments
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Programme has organised a regional workshop in Bahrain, bringing together representatives 
from across the region with representatives of communication and PR agencies. A number of 
reform case studies, in the area of privatisation and labour market reform, were presented by 
attending officials and were commented on by public relations and communication specialists. 
The long term objective of this project is to develop policy tools for use by governments in 
communicating economic and investment climate reforms.  

REGIONAL DIALOGUE ON FISCAL POLICY TO IMPROVE INVESTMENT CLIMATE 

Hosted by the Egyptian Ministry of Finance, the third meeting of Working Group 3 (Tax Policy 
for Investment) of the MENA-OECD Investment Programme was held in Cairo on 19-20 June 
2007. More than fifty participants including senior tax and investment officials from fourteen 
countries (11 MENA countries and 3 OECD countries), international organisations and the 
private sector held discussions on tax reform initiatives of MENA countries, and considered 
findings of recent tax policy projects by the OECD. 
The WG3 meeting also officially launched a Regional Tax Policy Training programme to provide 
training through a series of seminars and workshops, targeted at tax officials of countries in the 
MENA region, with the OECD Centre for Tax Policy and Administration called upon to organize 
tax events in its areas of expertise. Facilities for the programme are generously provided by the 
government of Egypt. 

THE RISE OF PRIVATE EQUITY IN THE MENA REGION 
The rise of the private equity in the region in the MENA region over the past 5 years have 
been noted by analysts and corroborated by the investment figures. Some observers have 
even claimed that the MENA region will soon become the “fourth center of private equity.” 
Fuelled by liquidity conditions in the region, fundraising for investment in 2006 has reached 7 
billion USD – a remarkable progress from the 321 million raised in 2004. In June 2007, a new 
record was beaten with the Abraaj Capital’s acquisition of an Egyptian company for 1.4 billion 
USD. Given this trend, which mirrors global developments in private equity markets, the 
Programme has been asked to address this topic in its bilateral work with a number of 
countries, including Jordan and Morocco. The NIRA workshops organised for these countries 
have incorporated discussions on raising the profile and activity of the local private equity 
industry and attracting foreign funds to invest. Governments in the MENA region have 
particularly shown an interest in attracting private equity to fund emerging enterprises and 
SMEs at all stages of growth. In Jordan for example, discussions focused on measures to 
strengthen the sector, such as by establishing a local industry association. In Morocco, the 
focus was on the new law 41-05 which seeks to regulate locally operating venture capital 
funds and provides incentives to invest in Moroccan SMEs. Dialogue on the application of the 
law and the incentives it provides has continued in a workshop recently organised by the 
Moroccan venture capital association, l’AMIC and the Financial Services Volunteers Corp 
chapter in Morocco. 

For more on this topic, please refer to the Policy Brief on Venture Capital available at 
Investment Policy Brief No.1: Venture Capital Development in MENA Countries . 

 

SUPERVISION OF FINANCIAL SECTORS IN THE MENA REGION 
Following the recent fluctuations in a number of capital markets in the Gulf, which 

reverberated across the region, greater attention is being paid by regulators and observers to 

the healthy functioning of the capital markets and leverage of the banking sectors in the 

region. In a number of MENA countries, the powers of capital market supervisory authorities 

have been strengthened and changes to the institutional structure of supervisory agencies 

have been made. A new capital market regulatory authority is being established in Kuwait 

with a law being presented before the Parliament. In other countries, there has been a move 

in the recent years towards establishing a single regulator as is the case in Bahrain, where the 

Central Bank of Bahrain has the mandate since 2006 to regulate the banking and the securities 

industry. In light of these developments, the Programme is conducting a study on the 

institutional frameworks for financial sector supervision in the MENA region, leveraging a 

http://www.oecd.org/document/60/0,3343,en_2649_34529562_38446908_1_1_1_34529562,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/60/0,3343,en_2649_34529562_38446908_1_1_1_34529562,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/60/0,3343,en_2649_34529562_38446908_1_1_1_34529562,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/19/0,3343,en_2649_34529562_37296339_1_1_1_34529562,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/19/0,3343,en_2649_34529562_37296339_1_1_1_34529562,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/19/0,3343,en_2649_34529562_37296339_1_1_1_34529562,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/daf/investment/pfi
http://www.oecd.org/daf/investment/pfi
http://www.sourceoecd.org/
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/26/54/37256468.pdf
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MENA INVESTMENT 

PROMOTION AGENCIES 

ALGERIA - AGENCE NATIONALE DE 

DEVELOPPEMENT DES 

INVESTISSEMENTS WWW.ANDI.DZ 

BAHRAIN - BAHRAIN ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

WWW.BAHRAINEDB.COM 

 

EGYPT -- GENERAL AUTHORITY FOR 

INVESTMENT AND FREE ZONES 

WWW.GAFI.GOV.EG 

EGYPT -- MINISTRY OF INVESTMENT 

WWW.INVESTMENT.GOV.EG 

 

JORDAN INVESTMENT BOARD 

WWW.JORDANINVESTMENT.COM  

KUWAIT INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

WWW.KIA.GOV.KW 

LEBANON -- INVESTMENT 

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IDAL) 

WWW.IDAL.COM.LB 
 
MOROCCO -- DEPARTMENT OF 

FOREIGN INVESTMENTS 

WWW.INVEST.GOV.MA 
 
OMAN - CENTRE FOR INVESTMENT 

PROMOTION & EXPORT DEVELOPMENT 

HTTP://OCIPED.COM 
 
PALESTINIAN INVESTMENT 

PROMOTION AGENCY (PIPA) 

WWW.PIPA.GOV.PS 

QATAR INVESTMENT DEPARTMENT 

WWW.INVESTINQATAR.COM.QA 

SAUDI ARABIAN GENERAL 

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

WWW.SAGIA.GOV.SA 

TUNISIA -- FOREIGN INVESTMENT 

PROMOTION AGENCY (FIPA) 

WWW.INVESTINTUNISIA.COM 

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES -- DUBAI 

DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT 

AUTHORITY WWW.DDIA.AE 

YEMEN - GENERAL INVESTMENT 

AUTHORITY WWW.GIAY.GOV.YE 
 

 

 

 

 

2002 study conducted for OECD member countries on the same topic.  

 

Preliminary findings have been recently presented in an informal roundtable held in July 

London, and a regional event on financial sector supervision is being planned for the 

beginning of 2008. For additional information, on this topic, please consult the proceeds of a 

recent informal roundtable of the Programme Informal Roundtable on Institutional 

Arrangements for Financial Sector Supervision in the MENA Region.  

 

MOROCCO NATIONAL INVESTMENT REFORM AGENDA  

A key event gathering over 100 private and public sector actors to discuss investment policy 

reform related projects in the Kingdom of Morocco was organised by the MENA-OECD 

INVESTMENT PROGRAMME, in cooperation with the MINISTRY OF ECONOMIC AND GENERAL AFFAIRS 

OF MOROCCO in November  2006. Topics discussed during this 2-day workshop included 

creating a transparent FDI restrictions list, establishing an appropriate fiscal incentives 

framework, introducing a corporate governance code and strengthening the venture capital 

industry. These areas have been prioritised and defined by the Moroccan government in co-

operation with the Programme, and thus have a direct linkage to the ongoing reforms 

undertaken by the Government. Reflecting the importance of the subjects treated, the 

workshop featured high level participation by government officials, including H.E. Rachid Talbi 

El Alami, Minister of Economic and General Affairs and representatives of various other 

Ministries and agencies. Private sectors, including the most important private sector 

association, the Confédération Générale des Entreprises du Maroc, have also actively 

participated in the discussions. Productive and candid dialogue among over private and public 

sector representatives took place during this workshop. This dialogue subsequently resulted in 

launch of pilot projects, including the establishment of a commission, composed of OECD and 

other international experts, along with their Moroccan counterparts, to develop a corporate 

governance code for listed companies. This commission has already met on a number of 

occasions and a code is expected to be released next year. 

 

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES NATIONAL INVESTMENT REFORM AGENDA   

The UAE Government has established a NIRA under the Programme in 2006 and has organised, 

in cooperation with the MENA-OECD Investment Programme, a NIRA workshop to review 

progress of investment reform in four concrete areas (refer to the NIRA agenda below) and to 

facilitate the sharing of experience between local and OECD experts. This workshop was 

preceded a number of Country Team meetings where discussions among representatives of 

the different emirates took place. On October 4
th

, 2006, the UAE National Investment Reform 

Agenda (NIRA) Country Team meeting took place in Abu Dhabi, under the chairmanship of H.E. 

Sheikha Lubna Bint Khaled Al Qasimi, Minister of Economy of the UAE.   

The NIRA workshop took place in December 2006 and marked an important milestone since it 

represented an exercise of coordination between the seven emirates in order to achieve a 

common policy stance on each of the issues. Another important feature of the workshop was 

its attendance by representatives of the business community from the emirates who were 

actively engaged in discussions which took place. The NIRA workshop was chaired jointly by 

H.E. Sheikha Lubna Bint Khalid Al Qaisimi and the OECD Deputy-Secretary General, Mr. Richard 

Hecklinger. On the occasion of the workshop, the Minister has announced the new investment 

law to be implemented in the UAE. The MENA-OECD Investment Programme has already 

provided expertise to the UAE in this area and will continue to input in the future as the law is 

drafted. 

http://www.andi.dz/
http://www.bahrainedb.com/
http://www.gafi.gov.eg/
http://www.investment.gov.eg/
http://www.jordaninvestment.com/
http://www.kia.gov.kw/
http://www.idal.com.lb/
http://www.invest.gov.ma/
http://ociped.com/
http://www.pipa.gov.ps/
http://www.investinqatar.com.qa/
http://www.sagia.gov.sa/
http://www.investintunisia.com/
http://www.ddia.ae/
http://www.giay.gov.ye/
http://www.oecd.org/document/20/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_38863380_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/20/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_38863380_1_1_1_1,00.html
http://www.oecd.org/document/20/0,3343,en_34645207_34645590_38863380_1_1_1_1,00.html
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PARTNER INTERNATIONAL 

ORGANISATIONS  

 

·ANIMA INVESTMENT NETWORK  
·2006 REPORT ON FDI IN THE 

MEDA REGION 
·GUIDEBOOK FOR INVESTORS, 

"INVEST IN THE MEDA REGION, 

WHY, HOW?" 
·EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK 

·THE FACILITY FOR EURO-
MEDITERRANEAN INVESTMENT AND 

PARTNERSHIP (FEMIP) 
·FEMIP AND THE MEDITERRANEAN 

COUNTRIES 
·GULF COOPERATION COUNCIL (GCC) 
·INTERNATIONAL FINANCE 

CORPORATION (IFC) 
·INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND 

(IMF) 
·IMF FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENT IN 

THE MIDDLE EAST AND NORTH 

AFRICA 
·MULTILATERAL INVESTMENT 

GUARANTEE AGENCY (MIGA) 
·FOREIGN DIRECT INVESTMENT 

PROMOTION CENTER 
·MIGA REGION: MIDDLE EAST 

NORTH AFRICA 
·UNITED NATIONS INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT ORGANISATION 

(UNIDO) 
·UNIDO INVESTMENT TECHNOLOGY 

PROMOTION 
·WORLD ASSOCIATION OF INVESTMENT 

PROMOTION AGENCIES (WAIPA) 
·WORLD BANK 
WORLD BANK DOING BUSINESS 

DATABASE 
·WORLD BANK MENA WEBSITE 
 

 

 PARTNER REGIONAL 

ORGANISATIONS  

·ARAB LEAGUE 

·COUNCIL OF ARAB ECONOMIC UNITY 

(CAEU) 

·INVESTMENT MAP IN THE ARAB 

COUNTRIES 

·GULF COOPERATION COUNCIL (GCC) 

·INTER-ARAB INVESTMENT GUARANTEE 

CORPORATION (IAIGC) 

·ISLAMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK (IDB) 

·ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE PRIVATE 

SECTOR (ICD) 

·ISLAMIC CORPORATION FOR THE 

INSURANCE OF INVESTMENT AND 

EXPORT CREDIT (ICIEC) 

·UNION OF ARAB BANKS (UAB) 

 

 
ENTERPRISE FINANCING NETWORK (EFN)  

–PROVIDING LINKAGES FOR GROWTH- PRIVATE SECTOR EFN 
The MENA-OECD Enterprise Financing Network (EFN) is a private sector activity of the MENA-

OECD Investment Programme dedicated to enhancing growth and job creation in the MENA 

region. The EFN aims to improve the conditions for innovative entrepreneurship by creating a 

platform to connect entrepreneurs, financiers, research bodies and policymakers. After a 

successful meeting in Bahrain in May 2006, the EFN has brought together for a second time 

financial sector institutions, science and technology organisations, entrepreneurs, business 

incubators, financial sector regulators and government officials during a meeting hosted by the 

Dubai International Financial Center on 21-22 March 2007. The main challenges facing 

entrepreneurs in MENA countries have been addressed during the meeting and members of 

the network agreed to address in the future the diversification challenge, the innovation 

challenge and the financing challenge.  

PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS FOR INFRASTRUCTURE 

A regional workshop on PPPs for Infrastructure financing was held in Istanbul last November 

2006, jointly organized by the Investment and Governance Pillars of the MENA-OECD Initiative 

on Governance and Investment for Development. The event featured high level participation 

and contributions from private sector and government officials on the evolving scenario of 

PPPs for infrastructure financing in the MENA region. More than 65 delegates from the public 

and private sector, academia, international organisations, consultancy firms and OECD 

Ambassadors attended the meeting. The initiative provided a constructive platform to discuss 

how the region can benefit from PPP arrangements to develop infrastructure, using them as a 

tool for the delivery of public services benefiting from private sector financing, know-how and 

efficiency gains. As a follow-up, a number of measures have been agreed upon among 

participants, including the conduct of a report on frameworks for PPP infrastructure financing 

in MENA countries; integrating PPP framework assessments into the National Investment 

Reform Agendas; sharing OECD principles for private sector participation in infrastructure and 

developing specific guidelines for the MENA region; applying guidelines to the water sector as 

a pilot project and priority for the region.   

MORE INFORMATION AND PAPERS PRESENTED AT THE MEETING AVAILABLE ON: WWW.OECD.ORG/MENA/INVESTMENT 

THIRD MEETING OF WORKING GROUP 5 ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

A meeting of the MENA-OECD Working Group 5 took place in Dubai, United Arab Emirates, 
on 27 November 2006. It was organised in partnership with the Centre for International 
Private Enterprise (CIPE), the Global Corporate Governance Forum (GCGF), and 
the International Finance Corporation (IFC). The Working Group meeting was co-hosted by 
the HAWKAMAH INSTITUTE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE. It took place back to back with 
the inaugural Hakamah conference, organised jointly with the OECD. These events brought 
together a wide audience of public and private sector corporate governance experts from 
Bahrain, Egypt, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Morocco, Oman, the Palestinian Authority, Qatar, 
Saudi Arabia, United Arab Emirates, Union of Arab Banks, and other regional organisations. The 
discussions resulted in a policy-oriented Declaration outlining important objectives and 
challenges. Progress related to the implementation of the Dubai Declaration will be reviewed 
at the next annual conference held by Hawkamah in co-operation with the MENA OECD 
Working Group on Corporate Governance and its partners.Key corporate governance initiatives 
on corporate governance of banks, state-owned enterprises and insolvency were agreed upon 
at the Working Group meeting. They will be carried out in the framework of dedicated 
taskforces, which will meet regularly in order to discuss and co-ordinate progress with the 
preparation of regional surveys and policy briefs on these topics. 

PAPERS PRESENTED AT THE MEETING CAN BE FOUND ON THE HAWKAMAH WEBSITE: 

HTTP://WWW.HAWKAMAH.ORG/REGIONAL_CONFERENCE/ 
 

FOR MORE INFORMATION ABOUT THE MENA-OECD INVESTMENT PROGRAMME, 
PLEASE CONSULT THE MENA WEBSITE AT THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS: WWW.OECD.ORG/MENA/INVESTMENT 

 

http://www.animaweb.org/
http://www.eib.eu.int/
http://www.eib.eu.int/med
http://www.eib.eu.int/med
http://www.eib.eu.int/med
http://www.eib.eu.int/dynamic.asp?cat=364
http://www.eib.eu.int/dynamic.asp?cat=364
http://www.gcc-sg.org/
http://www.ifc.org/
http://www.ifc.org/
http://www.imf.org/
http://www.imf.org/
http://www.imf.org/external/pubs/ft/med/2003/eng/creane/index.htm
http://www.imf.org/external/pubs/ft/med/2003/eng/creane/index.htm
http://www.imf.org/external/pubs/ft/med/2003/eng/creane/index.htm
http://www.miga.org/
http://www.miga.org/
http://www.fdipromotion.com/
http://www.fdipromotion.com/
http://www.miga.org/sitelevel2/level2.cfm?id=1079
http://www.miga.org/sitelevel2/level2.cfm?id=1079
http://www.unido.org/
http://www.unido.org/
http://www.unido.org/
http://www.unido.org/doc/18264
http://www.unido.org/doc/18264
http://www.waipa.org/
http://www.waipa.org/
http://www.worldbank.org/
http://www.doingbusiness.org/
http://www.doingbusiness.org/
http://web.worldbank.org/WBSITE/EXTERNAL/COUNTRIES/MENAEXT/0,,menuPK:247603~pagePK:158889~piPK:146815~theSitePK:256299,00.html
http://www.arableagueonline.org/
http://www.caeu.org.eg/English/Intro/
http://www.caeu.org.eg/English/Intro/
http://www.arabinvestmap.com/default.asp?PageId=3&CurrentLanguage=EngLang
http://www.arabinvestmap.com/default.asp?PageId=3&CurrentLanguage=EngLang
http://www.gcc-sg.org/
http://www.iaigc.org/
http://www.iaigc.org/
http://www.isdb.org/
http://www.icd-idb.com/
http://www.icd-idb.com/
http://www.icd-idb.com/
http://www.iciec.com/
http://www.iciec.com/
http://www.iciec.com/
http://www.uabonline.org/
http://www.cipe.org/
http://www.cipe.org/
http://www.cipe.org/
http://www.gcgf.org/
http://www.ifc.org/
http://www.hawkamah.org/
http://www.hawkamahconference.org/
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/8/46/38194688.pdf
http://www.hawkamah.org/regional_conference/


 


